
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
TJf E!VTl'-."iEf:Oi'W ,<;E."i.r.;,fOr~· 

Official Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 74: 
Budget estimates for the financial year 1968 

(continued) 

Page 

General discussion (continued) • . . . . • • . • 67 

Chairman: Mr. Harry MORRIS (Liberia). 

AGENDA ITEM 74 

Budget estimates for the financial year 1968 (continued) 
(A/6705 and (orr .1, A/6707 and Corr .1 and 2, 
A/6854, A/6861, /1/6878, A/C.5/ll13 and Corr.1 
and 2, A/C .5/1114 and Corr .1, A/C .5/1115 and 
Corr .1, A/C .5/1118, A/C.5/1123 and Corr .1, A/ 
C.5/1124, A/C.5/ll2f, .. JJ29, A/C.5/1132, A/C.5/ 
L.901, A/C.5/L.908) 

General discussior1 (continued) 

1. Mr. KELSO (Australia) sahl "":1t until it was 
possible to evalute the results of the re"-~- ;essment of 
the financial administration of the r 'nitto~l Nations, 
which had been initiated two years previously, efforts 
should be concentrated on implementing the recom­
mendations that had been made by the Ad Hoc Com­
mittee of Experts to Examine the Finances of the 
United Nations and the Specialized Agencies in its 
second report !J for improving financial -discipline and 
control ;md applying the available financial resources 
effectively to the work in hand. It would be wrong to 
think that, once the process of reassessment bad been 
set in motion, the main task had been complekd. On 
the contrary, the question which should be a;;;[~ed now 
was whether the machinery of co-ordinati•Jn. super­
vision and assessment might not itself conta;_n area f' d 
duplication and overlapping. Even if allowan"··· were 
made for the inherent complexity of an organization 
such as the United Nations, the wachinery diu seer·. 
to include 11 very large nun1bc ~· of bodies-the "P!fth 
Committee itself, the Advisory Committee on Acllllinis­
trative and Budgetary Qur:c:twns, the Committee for 
Progr:tmme and Co-ordination, the Committee for 
De<relopment Planning, the Administrative Committee 
on Co-ordination, the Office of the Controller, the 
Inter•1al Audit Service, the Administrative Management 
Service, the Panel of External Auditors and, lastly. 
the new joint inspection unit. Il wafl nbvious that those 
bodies and departments absorbed a substantial pro­
portion of the Organization's resources, in terms both 
of money nnd personnel; and it would he interesting 

!J Official Records of the General Ass~rr_!b'Y_, __ T~'J'Q~Y::fir~t__SesslOn, 
Annexes, &genda Item 80, document A/6343. 

67 

FIFTH COMMITTEE, 1186th 
MEETING 

Monday, 30 October 1967, 
at 10.55 a.m. 

NEW YORK 

to know just how much. In order t::> <tssess their 
performance, mo1·e empL:..::;is should be placed on 
actual results obtained. One should also bear in mind 
that administrative units, unless subject to a rigorous 
time-table for finishing their work, seldom seemed 
to wither away once established. 

2, His delegation's interest in the criterion of 
performance was based to some extent on its con­
sciousness of the responsibilities of the United Nations 
i.< the field of development assistance. Australia's 
total contributions to external aid were now two and 
a half times what they had been in 1960-1961, at 
the beginning of the United Nations Development 
Decade, and amounted to 0,75 per cent of the national 
income. Australia was particularly concerned that the 
limited resources available for development should 
not be wasted because of decisions to add unnecessarily 
to the administrative machinery. or because of the 
inability of the machinery to carry out the functions 
for which it was intended. An organization wishing to 
reassess and improve its structure, its efficiency 
and its capacity to implement programmes did, of 
course, have to have administrative machineryforthe 
purpose. But it would be wrong to think that the 
United Nations could achieve the results it wanted 
merely by creating additional machinery. Unless there 
were adequate additional resources for the machinery 
to do its work, its creation might subtract from the 
limited resources available for other things, including 
development. One sound decision of recent years was 
that to merge the Expanded Programme of Technical 
Assistance and the Special Fund, which were now com­
bined in the United Nations Development Programme. 

3. His delegation was sympathetic to the Secretary­
General's understandable request for guidance from 
the Member States on the rate of budgetary growth. 
The question was a difficult one, however, because 
opinions of Member States on priorities to be deter­
mined over a broad range of fields were bound to 
differ considerably. The only solution, as the Ad Hoc 
Committee had suggested, was long-term planning 
of programmes and programme budgeting. Efforts 
were now being made to achieve closer integration of 
programmes with the budget, but it would be wrong 
to count on radical and automatic improvements. In 
his delegation's view there was no real substitute 
for se lf-d1scipline and efficiency on the part of the 
Member States and the Organization's administrators. 
As to planning, it would be wisest to start with a 
fairly simple and readily understandable objective, 
1Jefore attempting to evolve more complicated notions. 
In that connexion the Secretary-General's reports on 
the form of presentation of the budget (A/C.5/1121) 
and on the advantages and disadvantages of a biennial 
budget cycle (A/C.5/1122) were important, and should 

A/C.5/SR.l186 



68 General Assembly - Twenty-second Session - Fifth Committee 

be examined in the light of the considerations he had 
mentioned. His delegation hoped that there would be 
close co-operation between the Committee for Pro­
gramme and Co-ordination and the Advisory Com­
mittee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions, 
whose respective functions were closely related, and 
between the Panel of External Auditors and the new 
inspection unit. The United Nations share of the 
expenditure on the Panel of External Auditors had 
more than doubled in the period from 1963 to 1967. 
There had, of course, been some increase in the 
responsibilities of the Panel, which was concerning 
itself more and more with performance and financial 
control. But his delegation hoped that the increase 
would be subject to the same close scrutiny as the 
expenditure of bodies whose accounts were audited, 
and that the work of the inspection unit would not give 
rise to excessive or unjustified expenditure either, 

4, The Advisory Committee, in its main report 
(A/6707 and Corr.1 and 2, paras. 52-73), had drawn 
attention to the need for a more precise definition of 
"unforeseen and extraordinary" expenses, and had 
questioned the authority of subsidiary bodies to take 
decisions involving expenditure by the Organization, 
His delegation would be sympathetic to any proposals 
for solving those two problems. 

5. It also shared the concern of many other delega­
tions at the continuing increase in the cost of special 
meetings and conferences, and hoped that the new 
Committee on Conferences would be able to find some 
way of rationalizing the situation, The financial and 
administrative problems raised by the ever-increasing 
volume of documentation were largely due to the 
increase in the number of meetings. His delegation 
agreed with the Advisory Committee that the Member 
States had a primary responsibility to exercise 
restraint in that field. 

6. It also endorsed the Advisory Committee's recom­
mendations that the number of new posts in the 
Secretariat for 1968 should be reduced from 524, 
the figure recommended by the Secretary-General, 
to 271. The Secretary-General had perhaps made 
insufficient allowance for vacancies resulting from 
the turnover of staff. 

7. On balance, the reductions proposed by the 
Advisory Committee were justified and should not 
have any adverse effect on programmes. In short, 
his delegation would support the budget estimates 
for 1968 as revised in accordance with the Advisory 
Committee's recommendations. 

8. Mr. DENNIS (Liberia) noted that the Secretary­
General, following the recommendations of the Ad Hoc 
Committee, had adopted a new presentation for the 
budget estimates for 1968 (A/6705 and Corr.1), which 
indicated with greater clarity the allocation of appro­
priations. His delegation trusted that the new pre­
sentation would soon be adopted by all United Nations 
organs. It noted the progress which had been made 
toward the establishment of the joint inspection unit, 
and hoped that the unit would soon come into operation. 

9. At a time when the United Nations was trying to 
accelerate the economic development of the developing 
countries, it was becoming increasingly important to 
improve the Organization's efficiency by arranging 

for the best possible utilization and distribution of 
the limited resources available, It was, indeed, the 
Fifth Committee's task to bring the programme of 
work into line with the requirements of economy 
and efficiency. In the first place, proliferation of 
conferences should be avoided by eliminating any 
possible overlapping and duplication. Efforts should 
be made to see which conferences and meetings could 
be held at Headquarters during or between regular 
sessions of the General Assembly, and to consider how 
the duration of meetings could be reduced, Secondly, 
the Secretary-General should be asked to reduce the 
volume of documentation in so far as was possible 
without impeding the Organization's work. Thirdly, 
the Committee should consider which of the Organiza­
tion's subsidiary bodies, operating in related or 
interdependent fields, could conveniently be merged, 
Lastly, new programmes and additional expenditure 
should be confined to the bare essentials. Measures 
of that kind would not, of course, produce immediate 
economies, but they would help to keep the budget 
within reasonable limits at a time when the cost of 
goods and services and constantly increasing. In that 
connexion, the Economic and Social Council should be 
congratulated on the decision it had taken at its 
forty-third session-by its resolution 1264 (XLIII)-to 
reduce its total meeting time and documentation. But 
the most important requirement for the normal 
financing and smooth running of the Organization was 
that Member States should not fall into arrears with 
their contributions to the regular budget and other 
United Nations funds. 

10. His delegation was concerned about the difference 
of opinion between the Secretary-General and the 
Advisory Committee on the new posts requested in the 
1968 budget estimates. The Advisory Committee 
wanted to reduce the number to 86, whilst the 
Secretary-General was asking for a total of 524. He 
hoped that a compromise could be reached and 
suggested that a meeting might be held between the 
Advisory Committee and a representative of the 
Secretary-General for that purpose. On the question 
of staffing in general, his delegation would like the 
United Nations to recruit more staff from the develop­
ing countries, whose talents and skills would be very 
valuable to the organization. 

11. On the Organization's rate of growth, his delega­
tion, while appreciating the Secretary-General's 
anxiety, did not feel that a definite target could be set 
at the moment. Among other reasons, many developing 
countries were unable, because of the shortage of 
liquidity, to approve and support an arbitrary growth 
rate. In his delegation's view, a solution could only be 
found through long-term planning, continuing evalua­
tion of the programme and proper co-ordination. The 
Secretary-General's task would be easier, moreover, 
if he were allowed greater flexibility in making 
transfers between different sections of the budget. 

12. Mr. URABE (Japan) said that he was disappointed 
to find that the United Nations financial situation, far 
from getting better, had got still worse, and that like 
the representative of Canada (see 1182nd meeting), he 
deplored the attitude of many Member States which 
seemed to ignore the Organization's financial dif­
ficulties and refused to make voluntary contributions. 



1186th meeting - 30 October 1967 69 

Japan urged other Member States to respond, as it had 
done, to the Ad Hoc Committee's appeal for such 
contributions. 

13. Although some progress had been made towards 
implementing the Ad Hoc Committee's recommenda­
tions, one of the main ·aims of which had been to 
control the considerable increase in United Nations 
expenditure, the budget estimates for 1968 showed an 
enormous increase over 1967. Although the reduction 
of $5,626,700 recommended by the Advisory Committee 
was sizable, his delegation still felt that further 
reductions were possible. The Fifth Committee had 
before it many revised estimates and reports by the 
Secretary-General asking for further increases in the 
estimates and the General Assembly would, as in the 
past, take some decisions involving additional expense. 
Thus, the final amount of appropriations would be 
higher than could be foreseen at present. The 
Secretary-General had stated (A/C.5/1127, para. 13) 
that he did not formally wish to contest the reductions 
recommended by the Advisory Committee, but that 
he had reservations about some of them. The Japanese 
delegation hoped that those reservations would not 
find expression in the submission of supplementary 
estimates at the twenty-third session. 

14. One of the basic causes for the increase in the 
United Nations expenses was the increase in the 
number of major conferences. Seven major special 
conferences were planned for 1968, as against five 
in 1967. The programme of meetings, as the Secretary­
General himself had pointed out, had reached un­
manageable proportions. His delegation considered 
that the situation was due to the fact that many Member 
States were eager to redress the unsatisfactory situa­
tions existing in the world, particularly in the eco­
nomic, social and human rights fields. While such 

eagerness was wholly legitimate, restraint must be 
exercised when seeking to translate it into actual 
activities, particularly when the resources available 
were not unlimited. Many devices had been resorted 
to in order to bring about the desired reducti.on, but 
they had not been as effective as might be desired. 
In his delegation's view, what was required in order 
to limit the number of conferences, or at least major 
conferences, was that at the end of each regular 
session the General Assembly should take a vote by 
which the Member States could themselves choose 
from among the major conferences proposed for the 
following year the two or three events which they 
really considered most important and urgent. 

15. Referring to the opinion expressed by the Advisory 
Committee on the absence of a sufficiently precise 
definition of the terms of reference of subsidiary 
bodies and on the latitude permitted by the existing 
General Assembly resolution on unforeseen and extra­
ordinary expenditure, he expressed the view that the 
free exercise of financia1 control by the Fifth Com­
mittee, and indeed by the General Assembly, was being 
limited. His delegation would therefore support any 
proposal which would effectively correct that regret­
table situation. 

16. The greatest increase in United Nations expenses 
was due to staff cots and related expenditure. The 
estimates under section 3 (Salaries and wages) had 

shown a remarkable increase in recent years, par­
ticularly for the Department of Economic and Social 
Affairs and the Office of Conference Services. The 
Secretary-General had requested an increase in the 
total strength in 1968 of over 525 posts. That was due 
in part, admittedly, to the increase in the number of 
programmes, but his delegation found it very difficult 
to accept the explanation given by the Secretary­
General, particularly in view of the number of posts 
vacant. It also had the impression that not only the 
resolutions calling for new programmes J.nu special 
conferences but also those which requested reports of 
some substance from the Secretary-General were 
used by the Secretariat as an excuse to ask for 
"drlitlonal staff. It would be a good thing if the Advisory 
Committee would look into that question more closely 
and if the Secretariat would make greater efforts to 
fill vacant posts with well-qualified and experienced 
people before proposing such an increase in the 
n~mber of posts. Many Member States which were at 
present under-represented in the Secretariat would be 
glad to offer their co-operation. In that connexion, 
his delegation was obliged to point out that although 
numerically speaking Japan might appear adequately 
represented in the Secretariat, most of the Japanese 
staff were in junior posts and none was higher than 
that of Principal Officer (D-1). His delegation regarded 
continuity as important for efficiency and economy 
and had therefore refrained so far from pressing for 
higher posts, but, since many new posts had been 
established during the last ten years and many senior 
staff members had changed their posts, not always 
with due regard for continuity and experience, it would 
urge the Secretariat to make greater efforts to 
improve representation. His delegation would refrain 
from commenting at the present stage on the Secretary­
General's note on the reorganization of the top echelon 
in the Secretariat (A/C.5/1128). It wondered, however, 
whether the time had not come for a thorough-going 
reappraisal of the whole range of United Nations 
activities and programmes with a view to concentrat­
ing available resources on those that were most 
essential, even at the sacrifice of others of less 
importance. 

17. Regarding the perennial question of documenta ... 
tion, his delegation noted that the Advisory Committee 
doubted "whether it is appropriate that a decision on 
publishing or on redundancy should rest with the 
originating department itself" (A/6707 and Add.l and 2, 
para. 102). If the decision really did rest with the 
originating department, it was only to be expected 
that it would be reluctant to give up publication of 
documents which it was naturally convinced were 
useful; the situation should be remedied as soon as 
possible. 

18. His delegation appreciated the work done by the 
Advisory Committee and although its recommendations 
seemed a little too generous, it would be able to support 
most of them. 

19. Mr. ASP (Finland) said that it was essential to 
restore the United Nations to solvency if the efforts to 
introduce administrative and budgetary reforms were 
to yield the desired results. Since 30 September 1965 
the Organization's deficit had risen by 8 to 10 million 
dollars, which meant that the amount of voluntary 



70 General Assembly -Twenty-second Session- Fifth Committee 

contributions necessary to restore the United Nations 
financial position was now 36.5 million dollars. 

20. Finland was one of the few Member States which 
had made voluntary contributions. The reason why 
the great majority of States had not honoured their 
obligations under the consensus reached at the nine­
teenth session of the General Assembly Y was well 
known. They seemed to be waiting for a lead from 
the great Powers, which, with the exception of the 
United Kingdom, were waiting for each other. If the 
situation was not quickly remedied, the United Nations 
would continue to be seriously handicapped and 
would remain unable to respond fully and effectively 
to the ever-increasing demands of international 
co-operation. 

21. In order to increase the efficiency of the Organi­
zation, it was also necessary to examine thepossibil­
ities of making more rational and more controlled 
use of available resources. In that respect, the 
Finnish delegation noted with satisfaction the recom­
mendations made in the second report of the Ad Hoc 
Committee, and also the reports of the Secretariat on 
the implementation of those recommendations. In 
many respects, the measures envisagedcorresponded 
to the views of the Finnish delegation on how the 
existing funds could best be utilized. His delegation 
attached great importance to the need for long-term 
planning, and it had suggested that a rough outline of 
the financial implications of forthcomingprogrammes 
should be presented with the budget estimates. It 
noted that that idea had not yet received serious con­
sideration. On the other hand, longer-term planning 
was made possible by the plans to introduce a biennial 
budget cycle. 

22. The Finnish delegation welcomed any measure 
for making the presentation of the budget clearer. It 
noted with satisfaction that the Secretary-General had 
decided, in accordance with the recommendations of 
the Ad Hoc Committee, to present the appropriations 
requested under Section 3 (Salaries and wages) in a 
manner which was more informative to the Member 
States, and which gave a breakdown by major organi­
zational units within the Secretariat. That new form of 
presentation could in future be extended to other 
sections of the budget. 

23. In an information annex to the budget estimates 
(A/C.5/1115 and Corr .1), the Secretary-General dis­
tributed the initial gross expenditure estimates for 
1968 under three broad categories: administrative 
costs, general research and study costs and operational 
costs. In the Finnish delegation's opinion, that break­
down was an important step towards programme 
budgeting. 

24. An effort must of course also be made to achieve 
greater uniformity in the administrative system and 
budgetary procedures of United Nations bodies. He 
noted with satisfaction that a joint meeting of United 
Nations bodies was to be arranged for that purpose. 

25. The Finnish delegation, which also had on several 
occasions expressed its concern at the steady increase 
in the number of conferences and meetings, hoped 

Y Ibid., Nineteenth Session, Plenary Meetings,l33lstmeeting,paras. 
3 and 4. 

that the Committee on Conferences would be able to 
exercise very strict control in that field. The need for 
greater discripline was also apparent in the matter of 
documentation. It was to be hoped that the joint 
inspection unit would begin to exercise its important 
functions of control and supervision on 1 January 1968. 

26. It should be emphasized that the budget estimates 
were based on careful and thorough studies by the 
Secretariat. Allowing for the reduction recommended 
by the Advisory Committee, the net increase in 
estimated expenditure for 1968 over expenditure 
approved for 1967 would amount to $3.8 million. In 
view of the ever-growing demands made by Member 
States on the services and facilities of the United 
Nations, that increase could not be regarded as 
excessive. Since all delegations supported the con­
tinued expansion of international co-operation, they 
must be prepared to pay for its cost, especially 
since the total investment in the peace and development 
work of the United Nations was really very modest. 

Mr. Esfandiary (Iran), Vice Chairman, took the 
Chair. 

27. Mr. EL-ATTRASH (Syria) said that the Secretary­
General's statement (A/C.5/1127) presenting the 
budget estimates for 1968 had only confirmed the 
Syrian delegation in its keen concern over the financial 
situation of the United Nations. The fact was that the 
United Nations needed $38,5 million in order to become 
solvent again; unpaid voluntary contributions had 
amounted to $67.1 million on 30 September 1967, 
and despite the Organization's efforts to settle its 
debts without incurring new expenditure, the situation 
was still precarious. 

28. Before considering the problems to be resolved, 
the Syrian delegation would like to congratulate the 
Secretariat on its clear and precise presentation of 
the budget estimates for 1968 and on having prepared 
some extremely useful documentation. The Advisory 
Committee had examined all the documents that had 
been submitted to it very carefully. The reduction of 
$5,626,700 which it recommended in the appropriations 
requested for 1968, i.e. a little more than 4 per cent 
of the total, showed how diligently it had performed 
its task. 

29. The Syrian delegation noted with satisfaction 
that the Ad Hoc Committee's recommendations had 
already been fully or partly implemented. The Panel 
of External Auditors of the United Nations had already 
communicated to the Secretary-General the results of 
its preliminary consultations on the scope of its work 
and of its relations with the joint inspection unit, In 
that respect, the Syrian delegation also would like to 
have more precise information on the auditors' powers, 
their relations with the Secretariat and the principles 
governing their appointment. 

30, The Secretariat had also endeavoured to imple­
ment the Ad Hoc Committee's recommendations con­
cerning the presentation of the budget in a new form, 
with expenditure items of the same kind falling in the 
same section of the budget, which was thus easier to 
understand. As the Ad Hoc Committee had recom­
mended, the Secretariat had also considered the 
respective advantages and disadvantages ofannualand 



1186th meeting- 30 October 1967 71 

biennial budget cycles, a matter to which the Syrian 
delegation would revert in due course. 

31. The quality of the documents prepared on that 
subject showed that the Organization had no lack of 
competent staff in administrative and budgetary 
matters. Nevertheless, the deficit was increasing 
from year to year. In fact, as the Secretary-General 
had pointed out, it was the extraordinary expenditures 
for peace-Keeping operations in many areas of the 
world that were the direct cause of the United Nations 
financial difficulties, The Syrian delegation understood 
why some Member States refused to contribute towards 
those extraordinary expenditures, and it entirely 
approved of their attitude, It was much more reasonable 
and just that those who, directly or indirectly, provoked 
situations which disturbed the peace should~ .emselves 
undergo the consequences, If the international com­
munity kept on paying for the damage thus caused, it 
would only encourage aggression, The Syrian delega­
tion considered that the restoration of a balanced 
budget depended on the extent to which each Member 
State respected the Charter of the United Nations and 
on the good faith with which it applied the Charter's 
provisions. Like the Secretary-General, he thought 
that the difficulties that were being encountered by 
the Organization were mainly political and constitu­
tional, whereas what was wanted, and quite rightly 
wanted, was that the budget should be largely devoted to 
humanitarian aid. For all those reasons, the Syrian 
delegation would vote against the section of the budget 
in which peace-keeping expenditures were entered, 

32, The Syrian delegation noted with satisfaction on 
the other hand that, allowing for the reduction recom­
mended by the Advisory Committee, a total appropria­
tion of $17 million had been retained under Section 19 
(United Nations Conference on Trade and Development) 
and Section 20 (United Nations IndustrialDevelopment 
Organization). •-lis delegation was also glad to note 
that the Advisory Committee had not touched the 
appropriation of $6,4 million requested under Part V 
(Technical programmes), It would, however, have 
preferred that that appropriation should be largely 
devoted to production and development, rather than to 
remuneration of staff, Like all developing countries, 
Syria hoped that the budget would be increasingly 
oriented towards development programmes, for one 
of the evils of the present time was the enormous gap 
between developed and developing countries, His 
delegation took that opportunity of thanking the Austrian 
Government for the generous aid it had offered UNIDO 
on the occasion of its establishment in Vienna, 

33, The Syrian delegation was glad to note that in 
his report on reorganization of the top echelon in the 
United Nations Secretariat, the Secretary-General 
had concluded "that it would be proper and opportune 
to reintroduce the concept of two levels in the top 
echelon, with proper geographical distribution at both 
levels" (A/C.5/1128, para. 9). The question of the 
reorganization of the Secretariat, and particularly 
that of the redistribution of posts on a more equitable 
geographical basis, had always been a matter of 
concern to the Syrian delegation, which would revert 
to that subject later, 

34. He drew the Committee's attention to the wish of 
a number of delegations that the teaching of Arabic 

should be included in the curriculum of the United 
Nations International School in New York, so as to 
prevent approximately 100 pupils of the school whose 
mother tongue was Arabic from falling several years 
behind in their studies as a result of their stay in 
New York. The idea could only be welcomed by the 
African and Asian countries concerned, especially as 
Arabic had become an official language of UNESCO 
and the ILO, and would soon be one of FAO. 

35, Before concluding, he wished to touch again on 
the drawbacks of the city of New York as the site for 
the United Nations Headquarters. Although the hospi­
tality offered the international community by New 
Yorkers was unrivalled, New York did not have the 
climate of impartiality and universality which should 
exist in a city in which the United Nations made its 
headquarters. New York's information media ex­
pressed views that were clearly one-sided and served 
causes that were too partisan. The situation was such 
that a number of delegations would probably propose at 
the current session, as they had done in the past, that 
United Nations Headquarters should be transferred 
to a city offering the Organization a political and 
social atmosphere more conducive to operation under 
normal conditions. Those were the general observa­
tions which his delegation had wished to make; it 
reserved the right to speak again on various parts of 
the budget if the occasion arose. 

36. Mr. DUBOIS (Belgium) wished to express his 
delegation's satisfaction at the important changes 
that had been made in the way the budget estimates 
were drawn up. They reflected the Secretary-General's 
efforts to implement the recommendations of the 
Ad Hoc Committee, would considerably facilitate the 
work because they made the budget estimates a more 
complete and more accurate instrument than they had 
been before, and represented part of a long-range 
operation directed towards an integrated presentation 
of programmes and budgetary estimates. The changes 
made in the form and structure of the budget would be 
all the more useful as the Secretary-General remained 
fully conscious of the fact that they could not, "in 
themselves, be considered as a substitution for pro­
cedures and arrangements designed to strengthen 
the management functions" (A/C.5/1127, para. 25). 
The Belgian delegation realized that the preparation 
of the budget placed a heavy burden on the staff of 
the Controller's Office; it therefore entirely shared 
the concern expressed by the Secretary-General in 
his foreword to the budget estimates for the financial 
year 1968 and hoped tha~ better planning and a rear­
rangement of the meeting schedule of the various 
bodies concerned would make it possible to produce 
one set of data which could serve most purposes. It 
also supported the Secretary-General's suggestion in 
paragraph 7 of his forward to the budget estimates. 

37. Even though it approved the form of presentation 
of the budget estimates for 1968, his delegation felt 
rather apprehensive about their content. It emerged 
from the budget estimates, the Secretary-General's 
foreword and the comments of the Advisory Committee 
that the Fifth Committee confronted the same old 
problems, which appeared to be becomingevenworse, 
At the more recent sessions of the General Assembly, 
delegations had raised questions about three problems: 



72 General Assembly - Twenty-second Session - Fifth Committee 

rising expenditure estimates and the need to reconcile 
the requirements of the United Nations with its 
resources; the problem of the staff; and the problem 
of the increasing number of conferences and the 
proliferation of documents. Although the General 
Assembly had adopted certain decisions at the Com­
mittee's recommendation, those problems persisted 
and had become particularly urgent. 

38. With regard to the continuously increasing ex­
penditure estimates, he pointed out that those for 1968 
amounted to $141,619,300, to which would have to be 
added revised appropriations of $669,500 made neces­
sary by decisions adopted by the Economic and Social 
Council at its forty-second and forty-third sessions, 
as well as various amounts to cover adjustments in 
the salaries and pensions of members of the Inter­
national Court of Justice, remuneration of members 
of the International Narcotics Control Board and the 
financing of the operations of the Board of Auditors. 
There would be further additions as a result of 
revised estimates by the Secretary-General and of 
decisions by the General Assembly at its current 
session. Thus, the budget estimates were already $12 
million higher than the appropriations for 1967. From 
1961 to 1966, expenditure had risen by more than $10 
million annually. It had appeared that the Organiza­
tion's financial crisis might be promoting a policy of 
greater restraint, inasmuch as the expenditure esti­
mates for 1967 had represented an increase of the 
order of $6 million over the appropriations for 1966. 
However, the budget estimates for 1968 abandoned 
that all too brief effort at moderation and represented 
an even greater increase than before. The Committee 
was faced with twin problems: the immediate problem 
of the 1968 budget estimates and, what was no less 
important, the problem of future years. As to 1968, 
the Belgian delegation believed that it was urgent to 
return to a rate of increase closer to that indicated 
by the rise from 1966 and 1967. With that in mind, 
it would support the reductions which the Advisory 
Committee had recommended and which, it was to be 
noted, the Secretary-General did not formally oppose. 

39. With respect to the future, the Secretary-General 
himself seemed to be suggesting the course to follow: 
in paragraph 25 of his foreword to the budget estimates 
he indicated that it would greatly facilitate the whole 
question of reconciliation between budgetary resources 
and work programmes if the General Assembly could, 
at an early date, give some clearer guidance as to 
the rate of growth it would be prepared to support in 
regard to these activities, either annually or over a 
longer period of time. Unlike some delegations which 
saw in that suggestion the beginning of a movement 
tending to restrict United Nations activities, the 
Belgian delegation felt that it was the undisciplined 
increase in expenditure which was most prejudicial 
to the expansion of United Nations activities. The 
Advisory Committee had emphasized that "apart 
from the financial consequences involved, there were 
wider implications in the practice of adding ••. to 
the over-all programme of meetings and to the expan­
sion of staff" (A/6854, para. 7). Moreover, theuncon­
trolled increase of expenditure involved waste and 
puplication which, far from helping the United Nations 
eo achieve its aims, robbed it of its effectiveness 
and threatened to weaken its moral stature and, hence, 

its political impact, It was also worth noting that in 
spite of the policy of comparative restraint, the 1966 
budget had enabled the Organization to function 
smoothly and even to set up the machinery for UNIDO. 
If the crisis in the Middle East had not entailed 
unforeseen and extraordinary expenditure amounting 
to $1,638,000, the appropriations for 1967 would have 
covered all but some $100,000 of the expenditure for 
that financial year, even though the cost of installing 
UNIDO in Vienna had been greatly underestimated. 

40. While he understood the apprehensions reflected 
by the statement of the Brazilian representative at 
the 1183rd meeting, he did not think that the deter­
mination to see a balance established in the regular 
budget between resources and requirements was 
dictated primarily by the desire of certain countries 
to reduce, or not to increase, their contribution. Nor 
did he think that it would result in hampering the 
United Nations in the sphere of economic co-operation. 
It should not be forgotten that in addition to the regular 
budget, there were voluntary contributions which, 
taken together, even exceeded the amount of the 
regular budget. It was those contributions which 
largely financed co-operation activities. A policy of 
moderation in the regular budget could therefore 
only encourage the voluntary contributions which 
were so important to the developing countries. There 
was consequently every reason to follow the course 
suggested by the Secretary-General. 

41. A number of delegations had felt that it would 
not be very advisable to fix a rate of growth and that 
the solution of the problem lay in long-range pro­
gramming. Admittedly, such programming was neces­
sary but it was limited, as the Secretary-General 
pointed out in paragraphs 13 to 17 of his report on 
the United Nations budget cycle (A/C.5/1122). More­
over, the experience of Governments showed that 
long-range planning was not enough. A Government 
had a Minister of Finance or a Minister of the Budget 
responsible for limiting the expansion of its expendi­
ture in the light of essentially financial considerations. 
The Belgian delegation therefore felt that suchneces­
sary long-range programming should be supplemented 
with other procedures and it would welcome any 
suggestion along those lines. 

42. On the question of personnel, he recalled the 
misgivings expressed by his delegation at the twenty­
first session (1132nd meeting). The budget estimates 
for 1968 appeared, unfortunately, to justify those 
misgivings. The Secretary-General was requesting 
the creation of a large number of new posts in the 
various categories when, according to the Advisory 
Committee's report, there was an equally large number 
of vacant posts. Some of those posts might have been 
filled, but the situation was still precarious. More­
over, sufficient advantage was not apparently being 
taken of the decreased activity in certain sectors to 
transfer staff, for the sake of economy and efficiency, 
to more active departments. What basis was there, 
for example, for asking for a new P-4 post to be ! 

created in the Division of Trusteeship when that 
Division's responsibilities were steadily diminishing, 
through the accession to independence of 8 out of 11 
Territories, and would be further reduced next year if 
Na,,ru in fact became independent in 1968. All those 



1186th meeting - 30 October 1967 73 

facts seemed to indicate the lack of an over-all 
personnel policy based on solid studies and rational 
planning. Not only the budget, but various documents 
such as the Economic and Social Council reportY 
showed that not all factors were taken into considera­
tion. His delegation had no alternative, therefore, but 
to approve the Advisory Committee's recommenda­
tions. It would like the Secretary-General in future 
to make a comprehensive study of the personnel 
question which would cover staff needs and serve as 
a basis for the proposals he was called upon to submit 
each year. The study should include proposals for 
reducing the size of the staff in departments with 
increasingly fewer responsibilities and suggestions 
for solving the vacancy problems and recruiting the 
staff most urgently needed for priority tasks. 

43. Dissatisfied as his delegation was withpersonnel 
policy, it was even more dissatisfied with the com­
position of the Secretariat. That question was dealt 
with in document A/6860 and his delegation would 
have much to say on the subject when the time came. 

44. With regard to the problem of conferences and 
the related question of documentation, his delegation 
awaited with the greatest interest the report of the 
Committee on Conferences. It endorsed the views of 
the Canadian representative (1182nd meeting) on the 
subject and noted with satisfaction the Secretary­
General's report on publications and documentation 
of the United Nations (A/6675). While it was true 
that the report was neither complete nor sufficiently 
thorough and that the recommendations it contained 
could be worded more strongly, it was nevertheless 
a sound document that represented a first step in the 
right direction. In any event, nothing satisfactory could 
be achieved without the co-operation, and indeed the 
initiative, of the bodies and subsidiary bodies them­
selves, as the Advisory Committee had emphasized. 

45. His delegation would deal with certain problems 
when the budget was discussed section by section, 
but it wished to take up briefly two matters at the 
present time, He was referring to the excessively 
broad definition of unforeseen and extraordinary 
expenses given in General Assembly resolution 68 C 
(I), and the terms of reference of the subsidiary 
bodies-two factors which together sapped the bud­
getary powers of the Assembly and constituted an 
uncontrolled source of expenditure growth. His delega­
tion could only share the misgivings which the 
Advisory Committee had expressed on the subject 
and it approved the proposal to revise restrictively 
the definitions given in resolution 68 C (I) and to define 
clearly the terms of reference of subsidiary bodies. 
It would like the Advisory Committee to submit 
proposals to that effect to the Fifth Committee at 
the current session. After approving those proposals, 
the General Assembly might invite the main organs 
to revise the terms of reference of their subsidiary 
bodies so as to redress an unfortunate situation 
strikingly illustrated by the revised esti::nates result­
ing from decisions of the Economic and Social Council 
(A/C.5/1114 and Corr.1).Itcouldbeseen,forexample, 
that the Ad Hoc Working Group of Experts to in­
vestigate allegations of infringements of trade union 

;u Ibid., Twenty-second Session, Supplement No. 3. 

rights was given virtually a free hand to determine 
its own estimated expenditure without any apparent 
control. 

46. The second matter to which his delegation wished 
to refer was that of the proliferation of autonomous 
services within the Secretariat. No decision appeared 
to have been taken in the matter since the Secretary­
General had denounced the trend at the twenty-first 
session. But that did not mean that the problem was 
any the less acute. His delegation wondered, for 
example, whether the draft resolution before the 
Second Committee regarding the establishment of a 
separate section in part V of the budget A/C.2/L.959 
and Add.1 was not essentially a product of that 
dangerous trend. 

4 7. His delegation had deemed it necessary, at the 
risk of appearing harsh, to make its misgivings quite 
plain. The Organization had experienced a serious 
financial crisis which had at least had the advantage 
of driving it to self-examination, following which the 
Ad Hoc Committee of Experts had formulated some 
recommendations. It was not enough for the Secretariat 
to ensure that those recommendations were carried 
out, The Secretary-General 1s efforts would achieve 
only partial and even superficial results if they were 
not backed up by the efforts of the Member States. 
The very efficiency of the United Nations was at stake, 
particularly with respect to co-operation in the 
economic, social and human rights fields. 

48. Mr. LYNCH (New Zealand) said that the Ad Hoc 
Committee's recommendations called for action on 
the part of both the executive authorities and the 
Governments of the States participating in the various 
legislative bodies. To erect and set in motion a fairly 
complex array of administrative and budgetary ma­
chinery would not be sufficient alone to ensure orderly 
and rational development, The system of financial 
management described by the Ad Hoc Committee 
would function efficiently only if certain pre-conditions 
were fulfilled, In the first place, the Member States 
must give a reasonable assurance in advance of the 
level of resources which the system was to administer. 
In paragraph 25 of his foreword to the budget estimates 
for 1968, the Secretary-General indicated that it would 
greatly facilitate the whole question of reconciliation 
between budgetary resources and work programmes 
if the General Assembly could at an early date give 
some clearer guidance as to the rate of growth that 
it would be prepared to support. His delegation 
appreciated the Secretary-General's dilemma but was 
not at all sure that from the current discussion the 
Secretary-General would be able to draw the clear 
guidance he had requested. 

49. In interpreting the Secretary-General's request 
there was general agreement that the Organization 
would have to take into account the needs and requests 
of its Members. It was therefore necessary to know 
ahead of time and with some certainty what share of 
the world's resources was likely to be available to the 
United Nations, The machinery now being established 
in accordance with the Ad Hoc Committee's proposals 
could then distribute the funds to the areas where the 
demand and opportunity for international action were 
greatest. 



74 General Assembly - Twenty-second Session - Fifth Committee 

50. There were three possible approaches to the 
question of budget growth, It was possible, for example, 
to set strict guide-lines for the size of the budget 
and its rate of expansion. The Secretary-9eneral had 
noted, however, that the majority of Member States 
were against arbitrary limits upon the growth of 
essential activities, That was also the position of the 
New Zealand delegation which, however, did not rule 
out the possibility of incorporating some quantitative 
frame of reference in the preparation of future 
budgets. At the other extreme there was the view 
which held that an expanding budget was both a sign 
of vigour and proof that the Organization's resources 
were being used to the best advantage. His delegation 
had reservations about that approach too. Lastly, 
there were delegations, his own among them, which 
would be willing to consider sympathetically the case 
for a moderate rate of budgetary growth where the 
need arose and provided that the expansion was firmly 
directed and controlled. That did not prevent his 
delegation from being disturbed by some aspects of 
progressive increase in the budget level in recent 
years. 

51, The estimates for 1968 were significantly higher 
than the level of expenditure approved for the financial 
year 1967. In terms of the Organization's over-all 
workload, the Secretary-General was requesting addi­
tional resources particularly with respect to the man­
ning tables of the Secretariat, UNCTAD and UNIDO, 
The reductions recommended by the Advisory Com­
mittee were based on clear and well-grounded argu­
ments. His delegation endorsed the principles of 
economy and efficiency which the Advisory Com­
mittee emphasized must govern the management of 
the Organization's funds. It had noted, however, the 
Secretary-General's reservations with regard to 
certain reductions. His delegation could not support 
any tendency to press reductions for their own sake, 
for that could lead only to dispute subsequently on the 
supplemenlary estimates, or might be detrimental to 
the policy of tight budgeting. 

52. For the time being, he would confine himself to 
certain general policy questions. He was pleased to 
note that the Secretary-General had done his best to 
implement the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Com­
mittee in so far as they applied to the United Nations 
itself, particularly with regard to the presentation of 
the 1968 budget estimates. The changes made would 
help to facilitate reference and review. He would be 
interested to see in future budgets a more complete 
statement of the distribution of resources, on the 
lines of the presentation of Section 3 described by the 
Secretary-General in paragraph 6 of his foreword to 
the budget estimates. Such a documen. would be useful 
not only to the financial bodies but also to those 
responsible for examining work programmes. His 
delegation was not sure, however, that a document 
departing still further from the existing appropriation 
pattern would be in the interests of firm, efficient 
management. The merits of the current approach, 
which made possible effective central control and the 
most flexible use of resources, had been confirmed 
by the Secretary-General's report on budget per­
formance for the financial year 1968 (A/6666 and 
Corr .1). Systematic reporting of that sort was useful 
not only to the Governments of Member States but 

also should be studied by the substantive divisions of 
the Secretariat when they were preparing estimates 
at the start of each budget cycle, 

53. Other avenues would have to be explored if the 
Organization's activities were to be genuinely ration­
alized. In establishing the Committee on Conferences, 
the General Assembly had taken a significant step 
toward introducing some discipline into an area of 
rapid expansion. His delegation hoped that that Com­
mittee would be able to draw up an orderly and ac­
ceptable calendar on the basis of the resources which 
were expected to he available. The task was com­
plicated by the fact that proposals for new meetings 
had been submitted and approved in organs that had 
already met, That problem was related to the question 
of the authority of subsidiary bodies to take decisions 
involving expenditure, without the prior c0nsent of 
the General Assembly. It was clear that the Financial 
Regulations of the United Nations were being infringed, 
His delegation would favour the suggestion that main 
organs, when establishing or reviewing the terms of 
reference of subsidiary bodies, should give the most 
careful consideration to the tasks and the powers they 
delegated to those bodies and define them clearly when­
ever they were likely to have financial implications. 

54. The Committee might usefully set aside two or 
more meetings for considering the serious problem 
of unforeseen and extraordinary expenses. His delega­
tion agreed with the Advisory Committee that the 
language of the relevant resolution of the General 
Assembly should be amended so as to define what 
was meant by "unforeseen and extraordinary" expenses 
and to limit them to costs of an exceptional and 
emergency nature, The situation had changed since 
1960, when the text had last been amended; and the 
problems faced by the Advisory Committee when it was 
asked to agree to some of the expenditures in question 
could be appreciated, It might also be advisable to 
consider whether Member States wished at the same 
time to narrow the interpretation of supplementary 
estimates. In other words, the question arosewhether 
provision for such expenditures invalidated the supple­
mentary estimates procedure. His delegation did not 
think it should. The problem was to reinforce tl.e rro­
C' dures whereby unforeseen and extraordinary expen­
ses were currently authorized, while allowing the 
Secretary-General a reasonable measure of adminis­
trative flexibility. 

55. The problem of balancing needs and means and 
of reconciling programmes and financial resources­
in short, of establishing an integrated scheme of long­
term planning, programme formulation and budget 
preparation-went beyond the question of budget pre­
sentation and the budget cycle and was relevant to 
the broader matter of co-ordination between the 
organizations in the United Nations system. The 
Ad Hoc Committee had submitted some important 
recommendations on that subject, The Advisory Com­
mittee had also been concerned with the question, 
and the Committee for Programme and Co-ordination 
had recently introduced a fresh and promising ap­
proach. If the efforts of those two bodies were to be 
fully complementary, however, the calendar of their 
meetings would need to be adjusted and their re­
spective fields of competence would have to be more 
cle' rly defined. 



1186th meeting- 30 October 1967 75 

56, The advances which had been made were modest, 
but, taken as a whole, they were satisfactory. How­
ever, his delegation did not anticipate spectacular 
progress towards a fully integrated scheme, He 
doubted whether, within the near future, there would 
be a place in the United Nations for a highly so­
phisticated system of budget and programme planning 
in the absence of the necessary preconditions upon 
which such a system must be based. 

57. Instead, what the New Zealand delegation would 
like to see initially was evidence of careful planning 
of United Nations activities in something more than 
a piecemeal, year-to-year fashion, In that connexion, 
the documentation on the work programme of the 
United Nations in the economic, social and human 
rights fields which had been prepared for the Com­
mittee for Programme and Co-ordination was to be 
welcomed,~ Something more, however, was to be 

Y See Off1c1al Records of the Econom1c and Social Council, Forty­
third Session, Annexes, agenda item 29, document E/4331/Rev. (and 
mimeographed addenda). 

Litho m U.N. 

desired than an estimate of the man-months needed 
to complete current projects. 

58. The advantages of planningwerenowfullydemon­
strated, especially in a period of rapid growth, when 
it could constitute a stabilizing factor. In addition, 
it would give the Members an increased awareness 
of developments envisaged and of the financial im­
plications, place them in a better position to pass 
judgement on proposals for new programmes and 
make them more ready to contribute funds to pro­
grammes to which they had given their agreement. 

59. It was thus easier to see the critical role which 
planning and the drafting of alternative plans could 
play in the advance towards an integrated system. 
Without planning, it would be difficult to formulate 
programmes and it was doubtful whether an effective 
liaison between programme and budget could be 
established. 

The meeting rose at 1.20 p.m. 

77501-0ctober 1968-2,175 


